
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL 

Chief Executive 
 
 
HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 
 
Date: 
 

Wednesday, 9 May 2018 

Time: 
 

2.00 pm 

Venue: 
 

The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek 

1 May 2018 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies for Absence.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee. (Pages 
7 - 32) 

5. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman).  

6. Declaration of Interests:  

  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 
 

7. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

  
(At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 
 

8. North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Update - Andrew 
Hughes, Director of Strategy, Development and Estates.  

9. Work Programme. (Pages 33 - 34) 

  
Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:- 
 

 Chairman’s items; 

 Members items. 
 

Public Document Pack



 
SIMON BAKER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

Membership of Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor B A Hughes (Chair) Councillor J T Jones (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor R Alcock Councillor C J S Atkins 
Councillor E Fallows Councillor I Herdman 
Councillor L D Lea Councillor G Lockett 
Councillor L A Malyon Councillor T McNicol 
Councillor C Pearce Councillor Price 
Councillor J Redfern Councillor T Riley 
Councillor H Sheldon MBE Councillor J Walley 
Councillor P Wood Councillor R Ward 

 



 

 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING 
 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 14 JUNE 2017 
 
PRESENT: Councillor B A Hughes (Chair)  
 
 Councillors C J S Atkins, E Fallows, I Herdman, J T Jones, 

G Lockett, L A Malyon, D Ogden, C Pearce, T Riley, 
H Sheldon MBE, J Walley, R Ward and P Wood 

 
IN ATTEDNANCE: Councillors A Forrester, B Johnson, M M Lovatt and N Podmore 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillors R Alcock, L D Lea and T McNicol 
 

1 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 
 
DECIDED: That the Minutes of the Meeting held on the 25th January 2017 be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING OF THE HEALTHY STAFFORDSHIRE 
SELECT COMMITTEE. 
 
DECIDED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select 

Committee held on 21st March 2017 be noted. 
 

3 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
The following declarations of interest were made:- 
 

Item Member Declaring 
Interest 

Nature of Interest 

Item 8 – Leek Moorlands 
Hospital 

Cllr. Jones 
Former employee of West 
Midlands Ambulance 
Service 

Item 8 – Leek Moorlands 
Hospital 

Cllr. P. Wood 

Daughter employed part-
time at Hospital 
Chair of Leek Hospital 
Action Group 

 
4 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS 

 
Question submitted by Councillor Pam Wood: 
 
“Does this authority plan to fight any reduction or relocation of services at Leek 
Moorlands Hospital and if so what form will this take?” 
 
 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 14 June 2017 
 

 

 
Response: 
 
“The Council will be taking part in the consultation exercise to start shortly with 
regards to the future of Leek Moorlands Hospital.  Following the publication of the 
results of the consultation the Authority will then consider the most appropriate way 
forward.”   
 

5 LEEK MOORLANDS HOSPITAL 
 
The Panel received a presentation from Marcus Warnes (Accountable Officer) and 
Steve Fawcett (Medical Director) of the North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG).  This included: 
 

 The roll out of Discharge to Assess 

 The temporary closure of 168 community hospital beds across three hospital 
sites 

 Investment in Home First services 

 The remaining services available at Leek Moorlands Hospital 

 The assurance process for the proposals for a reduction in the number of beds 
and the increase of home place based care 

 Future consultation plans 
 
The Panel explained that the public had lost confidence that in the CCG and the 
consultation process and that they were unconvinced that the new arrangements for 
care at home could be delivered in reality.  The CCG were urged to build trust with 
the local community.  Councillors raised concerns with regards to hospital services 
potentially being transferred to GP surgeries which were already stretched and 
incomplete post codes being used to identify the local population using the hospital 
(e.g. should not use only ST13 post codes).  Members of the Panel also queried the 
location of care home beds for patients not able to return home under the new model 
and questioned the quality of care compared to the current service.  
 
Members of the Panel were assured that no decisions had been made about the 
future of the hospital in Leek (funding was in place until March 2019) and that 
consultation would start during August/September and last for 12 weeks.   
 
DECIDED:  That the presentation be noted. 
 
 

6 WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Panel reviewed the Work Programme and asked that local hospitals, cancer end 
of life pathways and funding for hearing aids be added for future consideration. 
 
DECIDED:  That the Panel’s Work Programme be agreed, subject to the 

amendments referred to above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 4



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 14 June 2017 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 4.04 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee Meeting held on 30 
January 2018 

 
Present: Johnny McMahon (Chairman) 

 
 Charlotte Atkins 

Mike Davies 
Janet Eagland 
Ann Edgeller 
Janet Johnson 
Alastair Little 
 

Paul Northcott 
Kath Perry 
Jeremy Pert 
Bernard Peters 
Carolyn Trowbridge 
Ruth Wright 
 

 
 
Apologies: Jessica Cooper, Phil Hewitt, Barbara Hughes, Alan Johnson, Dave Jones, 
David Leytham and Ross Ward 
 
PART ONE 
 
61. Apologies 
 
It was noted that the attendance of the District and Borough Council Member 
representatives on the Committee had not been ideal and was particularly the case at 
the meeting. Without the attendance of the District and Borough Members the joint 
scrutiny arrangements did not work. 
 
62. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no Declarations of Interest. 
 
63. Minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2018 
 
The Chairman referred to the minutes and that Virgin Care had reported that they had 
not received any formal complaints, which was confirmed by a Member of the 
Committee who had attended the discussion at East Staffordshire Borough Council 
Health Scrutiny meeting. It was suggested by the Chairman that the Committee ask the 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Quality Directorate if they were satisfied with this.  
 
It was RESOLVED that; 

 The minutes of the meeting held on the 8 January 2018 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 

That the CCG Quality Directorate be asked if they were satisfied with the response that 
Virgin Care had received no formal complaints. 
 
64. Commissioning Intentions of Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Groups 
 
The Chairman put forward a motion which was agreed by the Committee to consider the 
Commissioning Intentions of the Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) 
first. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

- 2 - 
 

The representatives for both items on the agenda introduced themselves; 
Simon Whitehouse –Director for Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent STP.  
Sir Neil McKay –Independent Chair, Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent STP.  
Steven Fawcett – Medical Director, North Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent CCG. 
John James – Medical Director, Primary and Community Care - Staffordshire and 
Stoke-on-Trent STP.  
Roger Wade – Medical Director, Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent STP  
Marcus Warnes – Accountable Officer for the six CCGs in Staffordshire and a member 
of the Health and Care Transformation Board overseeing the STP. 
 
The Accountable Officer introduced the report and may the following points;   

 Every year the CCGs were required to publish commissioning intentions, setting out 
broadly what the CCGs were planning to achieve and how resources would be 
invested. In the previous year, contracts with providers had been set over two years. 
The latest commissioning intentions were therefore refreshing year two of the 
contracts.  

 Approximately 1.8 per cent of the CCGs resources was spent on the CCGs 
themselves, for example on staffing and infrastructure costs. The rest of the CCGs 
£1.5 billion resource was allocated to providers to spend on the CCGs behalf.  

 It was important for the CCGs to be clear about outcomes, what needed to be 
delivered inline with care pathways, the quality metrics set and the experience 
expected for patients.  

 Staffordshire had a range of challenges in line with the rest of the country and there 
had been and would be significant changes in the provision of care and where 
resources were placed.  

 Through the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP), the CCGs were attempting to ‘shift to the left’, investing more 
money in community services and primary care services to get people home from 
hospital and by working with local authorities to provide an integrated offer which 
would blur the distinction between health and social care needs and meet the needs 
of the population. 

 Seventy per cent of people in hospital were over the age of seventy and the average 
age of an inpatient at the Royal University Hospital Stoke (RUHS) was approximately 
eighty years of age. 

 Of the frail elderly population, who spent a disproportionate amount of time in 
hospital, nine out of ten people had some kind of mental health issue. Investing in 
mental health services was key so that the whole person could be treated.  

 The CCGs needed to move away from annual cycles of commissioning intentions 
and take a much longer term view.  

 Through the STP, the CCGs would be working much closer with local authorities and 
providers. 

 Clinicians knew much more about pathways of care than commissioners. The best 
place for services to be designed and commissioned was by those who used them 
and by the experts that delivered care.  

 Working with the local authorities, providers, patients and other stakeholders going 
forward to shape the CCGs commissioning strategies was key.  

 
A Member referred to the report which stated that; ‘for the avoidance of doubt, East 
Staffordshire CCG will not directly be undertaking any transformation work in the above 

Page 8



 

- 3 - 
 

areas as listed (unless explicitly stated) or will only be involved in those elements of the 
pathway that are outside the Virgin scope, unless otherwise explicitly stated.’  
Clarification on the situation was sought and if patients would be at risk? The Chairman 
also queried if the contract went on until 2023 and if there would be a time lag in 
introducing a congruous system? 
 
The Accountable Officer explained that; 

 East Staffordshire CCG had developed an innovative contract for urgent care 
services, long term conditions and elderly care services and following a tender 
exercise Virgin Care had been successful.  

 As a prime provider the CCG as the commissioner with responsibility for resources 
and outcomes, had delegated the responsibility of sub contracting care to Virgin.  

 Virgin would deliver elements of community based care.  

 He would become Accountable Officer of East Staffordshire CCG on the 17 March 
2018, however he had spent time examining the contracts and would be meeting 
with Virgin the following month to discuss relationships going forward.  

 There was five and a half years of the contract remaining. The CCG paid a fixed 
price for Virgin to subcontract and co-ordinate care on its behalf.  

 The transformation of services in the area was built into the contract with Virgin. East 
Staffordshire CCG was keen not to go outside the contractual arrangements.  

 Virgin was a small but significant proportion of commissioned services and the CCG 
continued to commission a range of services for the population.  

 
A Member requested an update on the issue in the next twelve months as patients’ 
experience of the contract could be different to what the CCG anticipated. 
 
The Accountable Officer confirmed that he would be happy to provide such an update. 
The contract had been running for a year and a half and was very closely managed. The 
outcomes delivered on behalf of residents and patients in east Staffordshire were good 
and in some cases better than in other parts of the county.  
 
The Chairman queried if the rest of the county could learn from the innovative working? 
 
The Accountable Officer confirmed that Virgin was providing care in a small area and it 
was easier to deliver care in a focussed way but there were some lessons to be learnt.   
 
A Member referred to the costly failed tendering exercise undertaken by four CCGs for 
cancer and end of life care. It was queried; 

 How the early diagnosis of stage one and two cancer was progressing and how the 
quality of life for patients and families was improving?  

 How much progress was being made in facilitating people to die at home given that 
the main constraint was the availability of community services? 

 
The Medical Director, North Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent CCG, referred to the 
situation in the north of the county and explained that; 

 The matter was determined by the performance of the urgent cancer referral 
pathways and how services engaged with patients about seeking help when they 
developed certain symptoms.  

Page 9



 

- 4 - 
 

 The CCG was working with the acute provider, University Hospitals North Midlands 
NHS Trust (UHNM), to accelerate test access for lung cancer and shorten elements 
of the pathway for the diagnostics of colorectal and urological cancers. 

 The CCG was working in a number of areas to improve the cancer identification 
rates as this remained a particular issue in Stoke.  

 
The Accountable Officer explained that; 

 Two thousand seven hundred people had died in the previous year at RSUH when 
only fifteen per cent of these people had wanted to die in hospital.  

 There had been a conversation at the Chief Executives’ Forum regarding the STP 
priorities. Focus areas included, the frail elderly and older people’s care and long 
term conditions, as seventy per cent of people in hospital were over the age of 
seventy and many of these people were at the end of life.  

 The CCGs had a mutual interest with the local authority regarding assurance that 
people were receiving good care in care homes. 

 In the last year of life there were approximately three admissions to hospital. The 
plan was to take the model of care specified, including the best elements of the 
procurement process, and work with local providers to deliver this.  

 The CCGs were working with three of the hospice providers to consider if they could 
take on some of the roles that it had been envisaged that the successful bidder 
would have undertaken as a system integrator to ensure a more dignified death and 
to take a more leading role in joining up care for people in later life.  

 How resources could be aligned behind the model and to get all working to the 
model was being considered. 

 Patients at the end of life were still being transferred to hospital for pain relief at 
weekends for example, despite an advanced care plan being in place. The system 
worked against itself to deliver a sub optimal outcome for that patient. 

 The CCGs were looking to address the situation by, for example, working more 
closely with care homes so that they did not feel the need to ring an ambulance.  
Nursing support could be provided by Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Partnership 
Trust (SSOTP).  Every care home resident should have a GP, and each care home 
have the support from a GP practice so that a high level of care could be provided 
when needed. In addition the CCGs were encouraging work with care homes to 
ensure that people had an agreed Advanced Care Plan in place so that support 
could be provided in the home if this is was what a person wanted, rather than them 
having to be transferred to hospital.  

 Where people chose to die at home, this could be facilitated through the 
commissioning of palliative healthcare, continuing healthcare and  the provision of 
the right support for example respite care for families in the last few weeks of life. 

 End of life care was one of the CCGs highest priorities and learning generated 
through the procurement process has enabled the design of better services. 

 
The Medical Director, Primary and Community Care  - Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
STP, stressed that; 

 The End of Life Care Strategy was clinically driven and clinically owned. 

 End of life care was not where it should be in Staffordshire and two meetings had 
been held to develop the strategy and a further workshop would be held the following 
day.  

Page 10



 

- 5 - 
 

 The Strategy was owned by primary care, community care, mental health care and 
secondary care and was clinically driven, with GPs having a significant input into the 
design of the Strategy.  

 
The Chairman sought reassurances that the Strategy would include early conversations 
with patients and their family and friends regarding end of life so that people destined to 
die could be de-medicalised early.  
 
The Medical Director, Primary and Community Care  - Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
STP confirmed that this was the case. The ten minute GP appointment slot was not 
however conducive to having these discussions. There needed to be ongoing 
discussions over time. Community services had to provide support for these 
conversations to take place and to keep them going over time with patients and their 
family and carers.   
 
A Member queried;  

 How involved West Midlands Ambulance Service were with the STP? 

 The provision of focussed prevention around smoking as this was not mentioned.  
 
The Medical Director, North Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent CCG, clarified that 
smoking cessation services were the responsibility of Public Health which was provided 
by local authorities. There had been a change in the approach by Staffordshire County 
Council and concerns about the lack of cessation services had been shared with Public 
Health on a number of occasions.  
 
The Member asked if integrated care was working or not? 
 
The Medical Director, North Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent CCG, confirmed that it 
was hoped that there would be a joined up approach but the resource was with the local 
authority and not the CCGs. 
 
The Independent Chair, Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent STP, referred to the pivotal 
role of the ambulance service in the STP. Discussions had been held with the Chief 
Executive of West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust and he was fully 
aware of ideas as to how the service could contribute towards the STP. Assurance was 
given that the service would sit alongside the workstreams of the STP and would help 
with the planning of sustainable services in the long term.  
 
A Member referred to the growing population in Staffordshire and the impact on doctors’ 
surgeries. The Chairman confirmed that Members had expressed concern regarding GP 
capacity. A Member referred to a case whereby a surgery wished to build a new 
surgery, but NHS England were holding up the process. It was queried how the CCGs 
could take this forward? Later in the meeting it was queried why it was hard to recruit 
GPs to Staffordshire and what benchmarking had been taken place against other 
areas? 
 
The Accountable Officer explained that; 

 Under delegated commissioning arrangements from NHS England, CCGs were 
responsible for the commissioning of the General Medical Services contract.  

Page 11



 

- 6 - 
 

 There was a mixed position in Staffordshire, with Stoke and Cannock, in particular, 
having high numbers of patients per GP, with over two thousand patients in Stoke 
when one thousand two hundred/ three hundred was the ideal number of patients 
per GP. 

 Between one third and forty per cent of GPs in Stoke were over the age of fifty five 
and could retire in the next five years and there were similar issues in Cannock.  

 It was very difficult to recruit GPs into rural areas.  

 GP recruitment was a national issue. 

 In implementing the NHS Five Year Forward View, a different model of care, based 
on ten thousand population, was being considered. 

 There were many single handed practices in rural areas which were struggling to 
cope so bringing practices together to share back office functions enabling GPs to 
have more time to see patients was one approach.  

 There were some innovative solutions in the south east of the county in Lichfield and 
Tamworth. South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula CCG were looking at a 
potential model whereby nurses could provide same day appointments, freeing GPs 
to spend more time with elderly patients with care needs. 

 In the north of the county the GP Federation were working on care hubs, recognising 
that GPs could not necessarily provide appointments as quickly as people wanted. 
People could get same day appointments through care hubs, but not necessarily 
with their own GP.  

 Recognising that many people went to A&E despite alternatives being in place there 
was work with the out of hours provider to provide GP appointments in emergency 
departments in all hospitals in Staffordshire.  

 From the STP perspective, work with Health Education England on long term 
workforce recruitment would be key. 

 NHS England’s Estates Transformation Programme provided money to build new 
practices.  

 In Stoke, NHS England had made available approximately £4.5 million for the 
development at Longton whereby three practices would be brought together into one 
new building.  

 The CCGs were not able to meet all infrastructure demands at the current time but 
were working with NHS England to prioritise practices with pressing issues around 
capacity and to address not fit for purpose buildings.  

 
The Chairman sought the STP view, highlighting that all providers in the system should 
be collaborating through the STP rather than competing. Even though the financial 
situation was precarious, the real concern was the human resource.  The unique selling 
point of Staffordshire to draw high calibre clinicians into the county was queried. 
 
The STP Chairman explained that; 

 Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent had to be an exciting place to work for professional 
people. 

 The market for GPs was fierce and there could not be the assumption that vacancies 
would be recruited to.  

 A dynamic suite of services, good development opportunities for professional staff 
and an exciting future was required to make people want to work in the area.  

Page 12



 

- 7 - 
 

 Something would have to be done to make the area the go to place to work or 
attempts to recruit would not succeed as everywhere was looking to recruit from the 
same pool of GPs. 

 It was possible for Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent to offer a suite of strategies for 
the future that would attract young doctors and persuade those that worked in the 
area to stay. The Committee’s help in achieving this was sought. 

 GPs who came to work in the area would also have partners and families looking for 
work and opportunities. How collectively to make Staffordshire the go to place to 
work not just within health and social care but for other professions was very 
important.  

 It was important to collaborate and not compete for the sake of it. Past poor 
relationships were highlighted by the critical KPMG report, but there had been a 
significant improvement since then. 

 There was a strong culture of working together between the health service and 
Staffordshire County Council, there was more work to be done between the health 
service and Stoke-on-Trent City Council and a CQC report published in November 
had drawn attention to some deficits. 

 Partnership working could not be taken for granted. There were mechanisms such 
as payment by results, that militated against good partnership working and a debate 
about how new payment methods encouraging collaboration rather than giving an 
impression of competition was important.  

 Benchmarking data was available. To some extent, every STP in the country would 
be experiencing the same problem in recruitment.  

 
The Chairman referred to the primary, secondary split in medicine and suggested a 
discussion with the Deanery about more hybrid qualifications so that professionals could 
spend time in hospital and in General Practice, which would bring more expertise and 
make the county a more attractive place to work. 
 
The STP Chairman reiterated that going forward the situation could not be managed by 
the traditional way in which the workforce was trained and organised. There had to be 
far greater flexibility within professions and between medicine and other professions and 
across the whole spectrum. 
 
The Medical Director, Primary and Community Care  - Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
STP referred to 

 The model of doctors working between the community and in hospitals used by the 
military and conversations held with Brigadier Robin Simpson, Post graduate Dean 
for military services, about what could be learnt from this approach. 

 A need for an emphasis on prevention. People needed good living environments in 
which to stay healthy and happy.  

 The average age of GP retirement was late fifties. He was undertaking work with 
Birmingham University to determine why some doctors did not retire early.  

 More triage and stratification of patient needs in General Practice.  

 The support of the Medical Director of NHS England for the new workforce, for 
example Advanced Nurse Practitioners, Clinical Pharmacists and Clinical Psychiatric 
Nurses in General Practice and pump prime money to develop this.  

 The conversation required with the public about how they accessed health services 
and who the best person might be to serve their needs. 

Page 13



 

- 8 - 
 

 Recruitment being much less of a problem in cities where there was a university 
training medical students. 

 The small post graduate course at Keele University and work to encourage people to 
put down roots down in Staffordshire.  

 General practice was mainly delivered by female GPs who often did not work full 
time.  

 Staffordshire had to be an attractive place for all to work.  

 Medical workforce planning often producing too many of a specialty or not enough of 
another. Although there were currently issues with recruiting GPs for example, there 
was not a problem in recruiting anaesthetists. 

 
The Committee Chairman gave assurances that the County Council would welcome 
discussions regarding employment and making the area a desirable place to live and 
work.   
 
A Member referred to the important role of pharmacies and made reference to a 
pharmacy in Burton that was closing on Saturday mornings. The integration in the 
system was queried and concerns raised regarding a silo mentality. 
 
The Medical Director, Primary and Community Care  - Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
STP clarified that; 

 Pharmacies were represented by the Local Pharmaceutical Committee (LPC) and 
individual pharmacists were working with the senior clinical leadership team in 
Staffordshire. 

 Pharmacies were commissioned by NHS England and opening times were a 
discussion between the two bodies.  

 
The Medical Director, North Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent CCG, suggested that their 
was not a lack of integration as the LPC were deeply embedded with the STP and 
clinical networks. Pharmacists were now working full time in some practices and were a 
very useful resource. He had advocated people go to pharmacies on New Year’s Day, 
for example. 
 
A Member referred to simplified and urgent care. Reference was made to the redesign 
of community hospitals in Tamworth and Lichfield and the reduction in beds. It was 
requested that as had happened in the north of the county, when similar proposals were 
put forward, there would be a meeting open to all Members to discuss the situation. 
Details of the timing and implementation of the reduction of beds was requested.  
 
The Accountable Officer confirmed that such a meeting had been agreed.  
 
Members referred to house building in the area and; 

 If there was lobbying of central Government to ensure that the National Planning 
Policy Forum included that doctors’ surgeries put in place by developers?  

 That there were five thousand homes being built each year in Staffordshire and this 
would continue for the next few years.   

 The District/Borough Councils made planning decisions, however the County Council 
was a statutory consultee for highways and education. Officer driven 
recommendations were provided. There was however no statutory consultee for 

Page 14



 

- 9 - 
 

health and it was queried if the CCG would be happy to take on this role and be 
made aware of planning applications?  

 On every planning application for over five hundred houses Stafford Borough Council 
consulted with the CCGs but had not had responses. There were few planning 
applications for five thousand houses at any one stage as they tended to be 
cumulative. 

 The Stafford local plan was being reviewed and this determined where development 
would take place going forward. The Member suggested the CCGs got involved in 
this process. 

 
The Accountable Officer commented that; 

 One approach could be that when a developer was wishing to build a considerable 
number of houses, requirements were put on the planning application to consider 
primary care services.  

 Becoming a statutory consultee to planning applications/ processes would be 
welcome from an NHS perspective.  

 Many practices established branch surgeries around new developments but it was 
still the same GP responsible for providing care for the additional patients.  

 GPs were private businesses so could not be forced to set up in an area or occupy a 
premises.  

 The CCGs would be happy to undertake anything that could be done with partners to 
improve access to primary care provision.  

 
The Chairman suggested that without statute the CCG could not be a statutory 
consultee, but could act if it were. A Member referred to 106 agreements in planning  
whereby, for example, roads and schools could be built. It was considered that the 
Planning Department should have someone to consult to determine what health care 
was needed for the number of houses being built. It would then be the responsibility of 
the planners to request medical facilities such as a pharmacy, doctors’ surgery etc., 
from developers. There needed to be more involvement of the CCGs in this process. 
The Chairman suggested that the CCGs were a member organisation so would be at a 
prime advantage in this scenario. 
 
The STP Chairman stated that; 

 The way in which the NHS managed its estate and assets was very traditional. There 
was enthusiasm to adopt the concept of a single public estate and there had been 
conversations regarding this with Staffordshire County Council and Stoke on Trent 
City Council.  

 There needed to be different arrangements to make better use of the estate 
available across public services and find solutions to solve future problems.  

 Some of the developments in Staffordshire included public sector and third sector 
organisations coming together to create a health and social care campus which was 
very positive. There needed to be more of this thinking, greater flexibility about 
primary care and how this could be managed and the disposal of assets. There was 
a range of things that the STP would be considering carefully. 

 
In a response to a question by a Member regarding prescription charging for low cost 
drugs available over the counter, such as paracetamol, the Medical Director, North 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent CCG explained that; 

Page 15



 

- 10 - 
 

 Nationally there was consideration of over the counter drugs and the approach to a 
wide range of medicines and remedies. There was a possibility that a number of 
things would be taken off prescription and the consultation would explore this.  

 GPs tried to encourage patients who paid for prescriptions to buy them over the 
counter if it was cheaper for them to do so.  

 GPs could potentially give out low cost drugs but it would mean making GPs 
dispensers which could be complex in terms of the law and may not be a popular 
approach with pharmacists.  

 It did not cost the NHS the prescription charge if people got free prescriptions, the 
charge to the NHS of the prescription would be around the same as what the item 
would cost on the high street.  

 The prescription charge was a mechanism of reclaiming the cost of drugs from those 
that paid for prescriptions. 

 
The Chairman referred to three themes of the STP that the Committee would explore in 
more detail – emergency care, mental health and enhancing community and primary 
care.  
 
A Member queried; 

 How accessible patient records were?  

 How far STPs were compatible with one another?  
 
The Medical Director North Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent STP acknowledged that; 

 People often asked why they had to repeat their entire medical history to different 
professionals.  

 The top priority of the local digital roadmap was one single integrated care record. 
This faced some challenges in terms of implementation but it was close to 
realisation.  

 In the urgent care hub in the north, GP records could be accessed. 

 Cross border issues were a challenge because the way in which IT systems had 
been developed over the years within the NHS was through individual bespoke 
systems which had to be gradually migrated.  

 
The STP Chairman referred to the ambitious plans for integration, a cornerstone of this 
being an integrated care record and a common mechanism for systems to talk to one 
another. There would be procurement for a system that would enable this to happen in 
the next few weeks. This would include social care records. In terms of cross border 
working there were discussions with neighbouring areas and there was a desire to find 
out more about neighbouring plans and how these might effect Staffordshire and Stoke-
on-Trent  
 
The Accountable Officer explained that; 

 Staffordshire had a population of approximately 1.2 million people, most people 
received care in the north of Staffordshire within Staffordshire, although people in 
Leek would go to Macclesfield and people in Newcastle would go to Cheshire. 

 In the east, with the Derby and Burton hospitals merger, people would increasingly 
go to Derby for their care.  

Page 16



 

- 11 - 
 

 Around half of South Staffordshire CCG patients chose to go to six different systems 
and four main hospitals out of Staffordshire in, Dudley, Wolverhampton, Walsall and 
Birmingham.  

 The CCGs were not the lead commissioners for hospitals outside of Staffordshire but 
worked with the lead commissioners.  

 The Council and CCGs worked together on the Better Care Fund (BCF) and had a 
target of reducing delayed transfers of care.  

 There were delays in discharging Staffordshire patients from Wolverhampton 
Hospitals. There were issues in terms of the capacity to identify when patients were 
medically fit for discharge to get them home quickly.  

 On a daily basis the CCGs rang up hospitals to identify which patients were ready to 
leave and worked with the NHS Trusts to get people out of hospital.  

 The Chief Executive of the Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust Hospitals was keen to 
understand if there was something that the Trust could do to assist in getting patients 
home again, for example using some of the community services that the Trust 
provided to Wolverhampton residents. 

 It was a complicated situation with a range of ways to move things forward but from 
a Council and CCG perspective the provider for most health and social care in the 
county was SSOTP and the right capacity had to be commissioned from SSOTP so 
that they could go into hospitals, get people out of hospital and provide the right 
services.  

 There was no reason why people leaving hospitals outside of Staffordshire should 
not receive the same level and quality of timely care as Staffordshire residents who 
chose to access Staffordshire hospitals. It was a complex issue that was being 
worked on. 

 
The Chairman stated that there was a similar problem with residents of Cheslyn Hay 
and Great Whrley accessing Walsall Hospital. A Member emphasised the need to 
address this longstanding issue as soon as possible. 
 
The STP Chairman commented that; 

 There was no such thing as a perfect boundary and that patient referrals 
transcended all boundaries and managing these interfaces would be given very 
close attention. 

 The STP was supportive in principle of the Derby Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust and Burton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust merger as this 
provided an opportunity for better care to be provided to Staffordshire residents.  
Concerns regarding the impact on the one hundred and thirty thousand people who 
lived in that part of the county and within the Derby/Burton catchment areas would 
be raised but the STP’s responsibilities covered these people and the CCGs also 
had a responsibility for this populations needs. 

 It was important to ensure that the new organisation provided the care that the CCG 
would expect to see for its residents. This was an important safeguard.  

 It was unclear how scrutiny would work for the new organisation, and this would 
need to be thought through, however he was confident that safeguards were in place 
to ensure that people would not get a less good service and he was optimistic the 
service would be better in time. 

 

Page 17



 

- 12 - 
 

The Chairman queried the exacerbation of the county’s trade deficit, the impact on the 
STPs financial balances and if none of the six CCGs had a primary contract with a 
provider would there be a democratic deficit? 
 
The STP Chairman referred to the huge financial gap of approximately £300 million that 
the STP was tasked to close. The STP had to be underpinned by something that all 
agreed was affordable and the plan had to be financially balanced.  
 
The CCG Accountable Officer explained that; 

 East Staffordshire CCG, which managed its resources well, were concerned about 
the Virgin Contract which had another five and half years to run and the impact of the 
Derby/Burton merger.  

 There had been close working with the Chief Executives about how care was 
delivered. Assurance would be sought that Staffordshire residents would access 
services in Staffordshire as they could do at the current time. 

 There would undoubtedly be a cessation of some services and the CCG had to be 
prepared for this.  

 The CCGs had been speaking to the Derbyshire CCGs who were in a similar 
situation to Staffordshire CCGs, with the CCGs coming together. Derbyshire CCGs 
would be the lead commissioner for the new merged Trust and the Accountable 
Officer wanted to ensure that Staffordshire CCGs also had a strong voice regarding 
the care that Staffordshire residents would receive. 

 The three CCGs in the south of Staffordshire did not lead on any of the acute 
contracts. The lead commissioner would design services. The Staffordshire CCGs 
had to use their collective responsibility to ensure that a more tailored set of services 
for residents could be provided than what was provided previously. 

 
A Member queried if data could be shared between organisations so that there could be 
predictions and modelling of where the most impact could be had in terms of 
prevention? 
 
It was confirmed that there was a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment undertaken 
between each local authority and health service. The core of the document was 
prevention and data was used to align commissioning intentions to focus on the priority 
areas. The data was available but had to be utilised to get the best value from it. 
 
The STP Chairman reiterated that; 

 A system would be procured the following week to support integrated care records.  

 There was a lot of information regarding prevention and it was important to be 
specific about the priorities for the population. 

 Each of the workstreams within the STP considered as standard the preventative 
methods which could be taken forward which could help describe future services. An 
example of this was cancer services, what was needed to step up smoking 
cessation, tackle the causes of poor diet and obesity.  

 There was close working with the public health directorates in both local authorities 
to make sure that evidence was in the forefront of thinking.  

 
The Committee Chairman suggested that there were too many people within the health 
profession who were overweight and smoked and he wondered if this could be a focus? 
 

Page 18



 

- 13 - 
 

The STP Chairman explained that NHS employers worked very hard to make sure that 
there were opportunities to encourage staff who smoked to quit.  
 
It was confirmed that Royal Stoke University Hospital (RSUH) had a programme of 
support to help staff with smoking cessation.  
 
The CCGs Accountable Officer referred to; 

 Smoking and lifestyle behaviours as key prevention areas and through the STP it 
was hoped that these discussions could be broadened out to include the wider 
determinants of health. 

 Housing was one of the main determinants of health and privately owned and rented 
accommodation was where some of the main issues lay. Bringing up a family in 
substandard damp house could have long term impact on health and life chances. 

 Income was the widest determinant of health. A good education, a reasonably well 
paid job and aspirations were important. Staffordshire had practically full 
employment but there were lots of people who still had relatively low incomes.  

 The NHS was the biggest employer in Staffordshire and getting people to aspire to 
jobs in the health and care was important.  

 Working through the STP and with Health Education England to get people to work 
in high value jobs, working with the Local Enterprise Partnership to get more 
involved in job creation and using the NHS to drive the economic agenda was 
critical.  

 When CCGs were first established some of the wards in Newcastle had appalling 
infant mortality rates. Targeted work with the local authorities in the area had 
resulted in the child mortality rates halving.  

 There had been similar improvements around smoking cessation. The evidence was 
that smoking cessation programmes had been hugely effective and there had been a 
number of debates about the cessation of these.  

 Working with the local authorities around joined up decision making was welcome. 
There was a huge amount of expertise within the CCGs which could be useful to 
public health, within the local authorities.  

A Member emphasised that South Staffordshire was a lovely place to live although a 
surgery in a rural village was closing. Residents had concerns about accessing GPs and 
if anything could be done to assist them. 
 
The Medical Director, Primary and Community Care  - Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
STP, referred to; 

 His previous role as Chairman of South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula 
CCG  and the positive working relationship with South Staffordshire District Council. 

 Joint services that had been developed but varied depending on the finances of the 
CCGs and the council. There was still the desire to maintain the relationship with the 
council to the benefit of patients and negate the rurality so that patients could access 
care in other ways.  

 
The Chairman referred the disconnect between the timeliness of activity reduction and 
system re-design. He sought the views of the CCGs and the STP regarding the extent of 
the disconnect and the mitigation which would be put in place to offset any risk. 
 
The STP Chairman explained that; 

Page 19



 

- 14 - 
 

 If there was a disconnect he would commit that this would not happen in the future.  

 Ideas and strategies had to be devised for the future sustainability of services, with 
thought to implementation. 

 When discussing integrated out of hospital care which was the cornerstone of STP 
work, the huge shift to the left required a step up in investment in community 
services and General Practice.  

 NHS England had announced a fifth test for service change, beds could not be 
closed unless alternatives were in place.  

 
The CCG Accountable Officer explained that; 

 The CCG’s QUIPP schemes included admission avoidance for emergency patients. 
Nationally forty per cent of people going to A&E could have been seen by their GP 
and thirty per cent of non elective admissions into hospital were avoidable. 

 There had been strides made across all CCGs around admission avoidance 
particularly from care homes in the south of the county. 

 Whilst less activity was sent to them, the acute Trusts had not closed capacity. There 
was always the ability to use the vacant beds.  

 The CCGs had to be much smarter in aligning QUIPP programmes with providers 
cost improvement programmes.  

 At the RSUH the CCGs commissioned an exemplar front door service so that those 
over the age of seventy could be seen and go home on the same day rather than 
being admitted. This had been an effective but capacity had not closed as a result.  

 There was a range of schemes which demonstrated that fewer patients were staying 
in hospital but capacity had not closed as a result. 

 It was difficult to deliver long term changes in an annual commissioning process.  

 The STP provided a forum for joined up conversations between commissioners and 
providers to determine what the future might look like. An agreed joined up vision 
about where the system was going across health and social care which would be 
shared with the public and stakeholders, moving away from the short term to looking 
at the long term imperative, meant that there was a lag between system and activity 
changes.   

 The conversations about system redesign had been ongoing for a long time and the 
STP provided an opportunity to take this forward. 

 
The Chairman sought reassurance from the CCGs Accountable Officer that the STP 
would be different and it was confirmed that this would be the case. 
 
The Chairman referred to the STP Contracts Forum and Outcomes Based Contracts 
which were seen as more risky than traditional contracts. It was queried if these was a 
particular risk and what mitigations were in place? 
 
The STP Chairman referred to; 

 The use of Payment by Results which was now seen as inappropriate. Clinical 
outcomes were now important within contracts but were not universally applied. The 
STP wished to consider this very carefully.  

 From an STP perspective it was important to start the conversations regarding future 
organisational and contracting arrangements. Getting this right would be the biggest 
enabler to realising the STPs ambitions. The matter was being pursued with 

Page 20



 

- 15 - 
 

professional staff, the public and politicians and would provide a more meaningful 
contracting journey.  

 
It was confirmed that secondary care professions signed up to this thinking as they 
considered that outcomes were very important. 
 
It was RESOLVED that; 

 A meeting would be held for all Members to discuss community bed provision in the 
south of the county in due course. 

 The Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Commissioning Intentions 2018/19 be noted. 
An update on the Virgin contract would be shared with the Committee in the next twelve 
months.   
 
65. Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership - Update 
 
The Chairman queried if the STP plans resonated with the CCGs commissioning 
intentions? 
 
The STP Chairman confirmed that the plans did resonate. As plans developed there 
would be commissioning guidance to make sure that plans were tightly aligned. He 
made the following points; 

 Health and social care was in a difficult position with financial pressures borne out of 
increasing population, demographic change, epidemics of lifestyle conditions, 
greater public expectations than ever before, problems keeping up with technology 
and paying for the benefits that accrued from this.  

 There was an opportunity to shape something for the future within the resources 
available.  

 The STP document had been published around fifteen months ago and set out a 
number of ambitions for the future for health and social care but did not go into 
detail. Plans now needed to be developed to make health and social care clinically 
and financially sustainable. 

 The STP would be ambitious and the City and County Councils would need to assist 
with this. 

 The STP would be used as a means of exciting staff and demonstrating that 
Staffordshire was capable of great things.  

 Progress could not be made unless there were integrated services and people who 
did not need to go into hospital could be prevented from doing so, and those who 
needed to come out of hospital could be discharged. Primary care was pivotal in this. 

 The Planned Care workstream included how to improve cancer care and end of life 
care. The starting point for cancer care was making sure that all services within the 
county were compliant with national clinical guidance and in the future diagnosis 
response times could be delivered routinely.  

 There needed to be a major step up in engagement about thinking as it emerged.  

 Scrutiny should be part of the process. The STP leads would regularly attend the 
Select Committee to provide updates.  

 There would be a significant process of consultation with radical and beneficial 
changes to the network of care in the county. 

Page 21



 

- 16 - 
 

 Good working relationships were important and it was the responsibility of all to show 
mutual trust and respect. Disagreements were inevitable but with good 
communication it was hoped mutual trust and respect would be maintained.  

 
The Chairman proposed that the Select Committee took a thematic approach to 
scrutinising the STP, with the senior clinicians for each workstream coming before the 
Committee.  
 
It was agreed that this would be a sensible approach but that it would also be important 
to include the enabling workstreams which included for example the workforce and 
estate.  
 
The Chairman felt this would take some further consideration. 
 
A Member sought clarity on how the STP messages could be shared with the general 
public. 
 
The STP Chairman stated that the STP was an opportunity. There was work with the 
CCGs and others who had experience of engagement to launch a comprehensive 
engagement plan to share the vision and ambitions for the future.  
 
A Member referred to the need to make savings within the NHS. The financial gap was 
£286 million in health and was £256 million in social care. It was queried how serious 
the STP was about working with social care if the focus was on reducing the deficit 
within five years and there had been little mention of social care within the STP. The 
Independent Reconfiguration Panel (IRP) had been very critical of the CCGs for talking 
about improved patient care when closing hospital beds as there had been a saving of 
£10 million to make. The current deficit, fifteen months later than the start of the 
process, was queried. 
 
The STP Chairman stated that; 

 There were many interesting and exciting ideas about how services could improve 
within the STP.  

 The STP did dwell overly at times on the financial situation and the exciting 
opportunities could be overshadowed. There was however no point in offering an 
unaffordable vision for the future.  

 The STP was not purely about cutting costs and it would for example be impossible 
to get clinicians involved in such discussions.  

 The precise nature of the financial gap would not be known until the end of the 
financial year, but it was confidently predicted that it was greater than when the STP 
began.  

 Learning would be taken from the IRP. The Panel had spoken effusively about the 
degree to which there was strong support in the county for the models of care that 
were being promoted by the CCG.  

 In future whilst executing plans, alternatives would be planned for, resourced and 
made available before significant changes were applied.  

 The experience of consultation could be more appropriate, meaningful and inclusive. 
It was requested that progress be judged in a few month’s time.  

 

Page 22



 

- 17 - 
 

The Member referred to spasmodic and incomplete consultation.  Healthwatch had 
delivered a number of events but the same people always attended. The consultation 
was not getting out to the wider public and the IRP were critical of this approach. 
Although the care at home plan was supported, in reality, the three to five year timespan 
was too long given the challenges in the local health economy. 
 
The STP Chairman reiterated that lessons would be learnt from previous engagement. 
He welcomed any advice from Members regarding engagement and suggested a 
discussion with the Member. 
 
The Chairman suggested that the County Council press team could support the STP.  
 
The STP Chairman confirmed that the NHS communication function operated in silos 
and the possibility of drawing together a single STP wide communication function was 
being considered. Local authorities had been far better at engagement than NHS 
organisations and there was a lot to learn from local government. 
 
A Member referred to a legal challenge and that it was hoped that an accountable care 
organisation for the whole of Staffordshire was not being considered. The needs of the 
north were very different to the needs of the south of the county and it was important 
that people in different parts of the county had their independent voices. Given that GPs 
had the most impact it was suggested that GPs and their patients be used in a much 
more proactive way rather than holding meetings that attracted just the professional 
patient. 
 
The STP Chairman confirmed that; 

 A Judicial Review was taking place whereby the Court was considering the 
circumstances where an accountable care organisation had been proposed.  

 A huge deal of discussion was required to consider the future organisational form 
and what was sensible to manage on a county and city wide basis and what needed 
to be managed locally.  

 There would be further discussion in time and Members would have an opportunity 
to contribute to this thinking. 

 
The Accountable Officer referred to; 

 The Stoke IRP referral which was in relation to Longton Hospital whereby the beds 
had been closed for almost three years and no consultation had taken place. There 
had been recognition that there had been a lot of work on the clinical model and on 
ensuring that it was robust.  

 The consultation had been interrupted by three rounds of purdah but there were 
lessons that could be learnt and there was a comprehensive paper going to the two 
CCGs in the north of the county in the following week which pulled out the key 
elements from the letter to the Secretary of State and the IRP report, and provided 
assurances to the Boards about what was happening going forward.  

 The CCGs had engaged with the Consultation Institute and had been working on the 
pre-consultation engagement process, doing pre-consultation tests to ensure what 
was submitted to NHS England was above what the CCGs were legally responsible 
to do.  

Page 23



 

- 18 - 
 

 There would be suggestions going to the Board, including a three to six month 
extension to the timeline to give people a better chance to be fully engaged in the 
process and give their views.  

 There would be better alignment with the STP process so that there would not have 
to be two consultations in quick succession on similar issues. 

 Regarding the referral to the Secretary of State by the Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee, about Bradwell Hospital, there had not been a response.  

 The Accountable Care Organisation was now referred to as Integrated Care, the 
legal challenge could get in the way of the intention of bringing services together and 
make the system more accountable to itself rather than individual organisations 
doing their own things.  

 Starting and investing in primary care, where ninety two pecent of people have a GP, 
so that people could be be managed at home rather than going into hospital was one 
of the things that the CCGs were looking to achieve through Accountable Care.  

 The STP was a footprint for developing an accountable care system which would 
need to recognise the differences in the county. The way in which care was delivered 
in the north, south and east of the county would need to reflect this but there was no 
reason why all organisations and the local authority within the Accountable Care 
system could not work more effectively. 

 The CCGs coming together and having one accountable officer, management team 
and executive team, instead of six by the 1 May 2018 would enable the CCGs to 
speak with one voice whilst recognising that the individual Boards were still in 
charge, delegating responsibility to the single commissioning function. This would 
provide much greater clarity about what was being commissioned. 

 There would be one set of commissioning intentions based on the individual needs 
of the local populations.  

 There was not a great deal of disconnect between the local authorities aspirations 
and NHS aspirations. 

  Better joined up and more integrated care was what the CCGs were trying to 
achieve for the populations.  

 
The Chairman queried; 

 Where long term conditions sat within the STP themes? 

 How stable and secure the twenty three local hubs and three aligned partnerships 
were? 

 NHS England’s role in the STP as the area team covered several counties? 
 
The STP Director confirmed that; 

 Long term conditions sat within enhanced community and primary care workstream 
and the prevention workstream. There had to be work to ensure a clear focus on the 
ambition and the aim of managing long term conditions and working with the 
population before they became patients. 

 A strong integrated out of hospital offer was a cornerstone to the STP but there were 
not yet twenty three strong local offers at a locality level and there was a still debate 
as to whether this was the right number of hubs.  

 Before any fundamental changes there had to be a strong and resilient out of 
hospital offer in the system. 

 There was more work to be undertaken regarding where the Alliance Board sat 
within governance and a place based approach to provide a real focus on the 

Page 24



 

- 19 - 
 

population and meet the needs of the population in a locality. How to balance the 
challenge of scale with making services responsive to local needs was part of the 
discussion around hubs and alliances and how to plan services. What could be done 
at a local level, county level and on a greater scale was part of the work that the 
workstreams were being asked to consider.  

 It was confirmed that long term conditions would be included within the enhanced 
primary and community care workstream.  

 There was increasing close alignment with NHS England as the team for the locality 
were working with the STP on a weekly basis. There was more work to do in terms 
of the specialised commissioning aspects of NHS England but there was a 
programme of work to make over the next few weeks and months.  

 Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent STP was in a stronger position in terms of its 
relationship with NHS England than many other parts of the county. They had 
positions on the committees and attended.  

 
Regarding the consultation with the public, a Member highlighted that a number of the 
District/Borough Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee Members were not in 
attendance at the meeting and it was important for the STP representatives and CCG 
Accountable Officer to consult the District/Boroughs Councils and talk to Councillors 
who may be on Parish Councils also.  
 
The STP Director was confirmed that in the past the CCGs had presented to the Healthy 
Staffordshire Select Committee which had provided the link to the other District/Borough 
Health Scrutiny Committees in Staffordshire to avoid duplication. As the engagement 
structure was developed, the level of engagement in an all encompassing way needed 
to be discussed. The relationship with the other scrutiny committees also needed to be 
considered. 
 
The Member explained that needs were different in the north and south and there could 
be different learning from elsewhere. 
 
The STP Director made a commitment to put in the work required to engage with 
colleagues across the county in a way that made the most sense to add value. He 
explained that having a relationship with the Committee enabled thinking to be 
developed and having a work plan in place to do this made sense. Support for the 
thematic approach to scrutinising the STP and having clinicians attend scrutiny to 
discuss how work was progressing. It was important to have the Committee’s 
involvement to help shape developments. The Committee’s guidance and steer 
regarding engagement and formal consultation was helpful. The Committee had made a 
number of useful points regarding workforce recruitment and estates that would be 
taken back into the STP process. How to work together to articulate the drive and vision 
for Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent to deliver health and care services which were 
clinically sustainable and financially viable and to change the reputation that Stoke and 
Staffordshire has in terms of the outcomes of the population which are served.  
 
It was RESOLVED that; 

 The Committee note the update provided and the initial thinking about involving the 
public in the transformation programme. 

 The engagement with scrutiny at the County Council and District and Borough 
Councils in Staffordshire be considered. 

Page 25



 

- 20 - 
 

 A thematic approach be given to scrutiny of the STP going forward including 
consideration of the enabling workstreams, and that the Work Programme be 
amended to reflect this. 

 That the STP Chairman discuss with Councillor Atkinson opportunities for 
engagement and consultation.  

 
66. District and Borough Health Scrutiny Activity 
 
A Member suggested that there should be a report to the District/Borough Councils 
whose Members had not attended the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee and that 
they could send alternative representatives to the Committee if the appointed person 
was unable to attend.  
 
The Committee Chairman accepted concerns about the low attendance of the District 
and Borough Members of the Committee. He proposed to write to the Leader of the 
Council regarding the matter, highlighting the attendance of the District and Borough 
Committees. In light of the Francis Inquiry the Committee should be a Joint Committee. 
The District and Borough Health Scrutiny Committees should not be requesting NHS 
providers attend scrutiny as this was the role of the Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee and it was therefore important that the District and Boroughs were 
represented on the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee. If the Chairman wrote to the 
Leader it was hoped that he could then have the leverage to bring the matter up when 
he met with the Chief Executives and Leaders of the District and Borough Councils. 
 
A Member suggested that a letter be sent directly to the District and Borough Councils 
detailing the attendance of their nominated person, particularly if they had a paid role 
and were not fulfilling the requirements of this role. Disappointment was expressed 
about the lack of attendance of the relevant District Councils at the engagement event in 
the north of the county regarding community hospitals and it was concerning that there 
were only two representatives from the County Council when three places were offered.  
 
The Chairman confirmed that it had been difficult to encourage representatives to attend 
as Members needed to be available to attend two events. Councillor Deaville would be 
attending one of the events and had been given leave not to attend the other. 
 
Non representation from East Staffordshire Borough Council at the Healthy Staffordshire 
Select Committee in the context of the Burton and Derby hospitals merger, the overlap 
with the Derby STP and the deficits at both hospital Trusts, was raised as a concern by 
a Member. He undertook to contact the leader at his Borough Council regarding his 
disappointment and that he was being placed in a position to provide the link between 
the Borough Committee and the County Committee.  
 
A Member reported that the Tamworth Health Scrutiny Committee had discussed the 
matter. Members often worked during the day and found it difficult to attend meetings 
that took place in the day however it was highlighted that membership with full voting 
rights was provided on the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee to the District and 
Borough Council Health Scrutiny Chairman. It was the Chairman who should therefore 
attend the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee meetings as they were accountable 
to their health scrutiny committee.  
 

Page 26



 

- 21 - 
 

It was confirmed that emails had already been sent by the Chairman of the Healthy 
Staffordshire Select Committee to the District and Borough Councils and it was felt that 
taking the matter to the Leader would be the next step, although the Chairman did offer 
to write to the Districts and Borough Councils again.  
 
A Member emphasised that it would only be the Chairs of the District/Borough Health 
Scrutiny Committees that should attend the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee as 
this was one of their key roles and this had always been the case.  
 
The Chairman suggested that if the current Chairman of the Health Scrutiny Committees 
of the District and Borough Councils could not attend the Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee then the Leaders of those Councils would need to find an alternative 
Chairman.  
 
A Member expressed concern that younger people were being encouraged to become 
Members at District and Borough Councils but it was difficult for them to attend meetings 
during the day if they had working commitments. If the Leaders of the District/Borough 
Councils could not find suitable Chairmen for the Health Scrutiny Committees who could 
attend Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee meetings during the day this could create 
difficulties.  
 
The Chairman suggested that moving the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee 
meetings to the evening would not solve the issue as it could clash with District/Borough 
Council meetings and give the message that scrutiny was an add on rather than integral 
part of the system. 
 
A Member referred to the District and Borough Health Scrutiny Officer meetings which 
could be another mechanism to raise concerns that representatives were not attending. 
 
 A Member confirmed that at Newcastle Borough Council the Chairman were paid an 
allowance and therefore it was an expectation that this was compensation to spend time 
at meetings during the day. 
 
The Chairman commented that UHNM had contacted him and it had been confirmed 
that the providers were only obliged to attend the Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee and did not have to attend the Newcastle Borough Council Health Scrutiny 
Committee. In the past there had been too much pressure to attend both the 
District/Borough Committees and the County Committee and this had been identified by 
Francis as an issue. The Chairman had advised that UHNM only need provide a written 
report to the Borough Committee as the Trust would be attending the Healthy 
Staffordshire Select Committee.  
 
The Chairman concluded that he would write to the Leader of Staffordshire County 
Council regarding the issue, to the Chairman of the District and Borough Health Scrutiny 
Committees highlighting the matter and ask that the matter be raised at the Health 
Scrutiny Officers’ meeting.  
 
A Member asked that the importance of the Burton/Derby merger and the absence of 
the East Staffordshire representative be highlighted.  
 

Page 27



 

- 22 - 
 

The Chairman confirmed that a Burton/Derby hospital representative from the two 
Trusts was only obliged to attend the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee, but had 
attended both the Lichfield District Council and East Staffordshire Borough Council 
health scrutiny meetings. The same should not be anticipated in the future however.  
 
It was RESOLVED that; 

 The Chairman would write to the Leader of Staffordshire County Council regarding 
the attendance of the District and Borough Council representatives on the 
Committee. 

 The Chairman would write to the District and Borough Health Scrutiny Chairman 
regarding the importance of attendance at the Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee. 

The status of the Health Scrutiny Officers meeting would be explored and the matter of 
Member attendance at the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee raised at this 
meeting.   
 
67. Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee Work Programme 2017/18 
 
The Chairman confirmed that the Joint Health Scrutiny Accountability Sessions with the 
NHS provider Trusts in the county would be reinstated. They would be more focussed 
and Trusts would be asked to submit their self assessment. The Chairman would also 
examine the items that went to the governing bodies from the Quality and Safety 
Directorate and the Performance Directorate at the CCGs and ensure that the questions 
asked were focussed and informative. The meetings would be held in County buildings. 
It was suggested that meetings should not be held in the early evening as scrutiny 
should be integral to the working day. He would be writing to the Health Scrutiny 
Chairmen in neighbouring authorities including Wolverhampton, Birmingham and 
Walsall regarding the providers which were located elsewhere but also cared for 
Staffordshire residents regarding their approach and a possible joint approach.  
 
A Member asked if the public could attend and ask questions. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that the public would be able to submit written questions and 
attend on the day and ask questions. Both approaches were needed if the meetings 
were to be held in county buildings. 
 
A Member confirmed that meetings were held initially between 6-8pm but this was 
changed to between 4-6pm so that people could attend immediately after work. 
Representatives always attended. The public may not be able to attend meetings earlier 
in the day. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that he would speak to the Chairman of the other Select 
Committees regarding how these meetings could be supported by the Scrutiny Team. 
 
A Member asked how the public could be informed that the Accountability Sessions 
were taking place? 
 
The Chairman confirmed that written questions in the past came from District/Borough 
Councillors and not the public. 
 

Page 28



 

- 23 - 
 

Members sought reassurances that both the West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS 
Trust and North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust would be invited and the 
Chairman confirmed they would be.  
 
Regarding the cross border hospitals, a Member commented that the Chief Executives 
of New Cross Hospital and Walsall Manor Hospital had attended the Committee before 
and were willing to do so. The former Committee Chairman had also attended the Trust 
Board meetings of hospitals outside Staffordshire. 
 
It was suggested that the pre-meeting invite be sent out to the Members.  
 
The Scrutiny and Support Manager confirmed that two additional meetings had been 
timetabled, one in March and one in April 2018. The Chief Executive of South 
Staffordshire and Shropshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust had been invited to 
attend the meeting in May.  
 
The Chairman commented that there had been a consultation on gluten free prescribing 
in the north in the past and there was shortly going to be consultation about gluten free 
prescribing in the south to make it compatible with the north. This was the prescribing of 
gluten free foods and the CCG was arguing the case to no longer prescribe foods for 
adults over the age of eighteen and below the age of eighteen only prescribe flour and 
bread on prescription. The CCGs was arguing that a healthy diet should only have 
fifteen per cent of foods that contained gluten in them. Many of the gluten free items 
were more expensive but the NHS purchase of the items was significantly more 
expensive again and the public purse was paying more than what the individual would 
for the same producer. He commented that it made financial sense but could be 
politically difficult. It was confirmed that the information would be sent to Members for 
their comments. 
 
A Member referred to free prescriptions for diabetics. 
 
The Chairman commented that diabetics got free prescriptions but people with other 
conditions such as asthma did not and there were many anomalies in the system. The 
gluten free prescribing however was for food and not drugs. Feedback was sought from 
Members via email on the issue and a decision would be taken on the way forward.  
 
A Member commented that diabetics would not receive food on prescription and that 
food should not be given on prescription. 
 
The Chairman shared this view but felt the matter should be properly considered.  
 
A Member highlighted that supermarkets did not have clearly labelled specialist food 
and the Chairman commented that this was a central government issue.  
 
The Chairman confirmed that the three important STP themes of emergency care, 
mental health and enhancing community and primary care had been factored into the 
work programme.  
 
In response to a question it was confirmed that the 16 April meeting would take place at 
10am.  

Page 29



 

- 24 - 
 

 
It was RESOLVED that; 

 Additional Committee Meetings had been timetabled to take place on the 7 March 
2018 and 16 April 2018. 

 The pre-meeting invite to be sent to all Select Committee Members. 

 The Chairman would speak to the Chairman of the other Select Committees 
regarding how meetings could be supported by the Scrutiny Team 

 That Joint Health Scrutiny Accountability Sessions with NHS Trusts in Staffordshire, 
including West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust and North 
Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust. 

 Written questions from the public would be invited in advance of Joint Health 
Scrutiny Accountability Sessions. 

 The Chairman would write to the Health Scrutiny Chairs of neighbouring authorities 
outside of Staffordshire regarding the scrutiny arrangements for NHS Trusts outside 
of Staffordshire that Staffordshire residents accessed. 

The information regarding possible changes gluten free prescribing be circulated to all 
Committee Members and that Members share their views on the matter with the 
Chairman via email. 
 
68. Date of Next Meeting - Wednesday 7 March 2018 at 2.00 pm, County 
Buildings, Stafford 
 
69. Exclusion of the Public 
 
70. Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2018 
 
It was RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting were approved subject to the 
following amendments;  
 
That the sentence; ‘The proposed future take up figures appeared ambitious and the 
unique selling point of the provider Everybody Health was queried.’, was reworded to 
state; 
‘The unique selling point of the provider Everybody Health was queried as the proposed 
take up figure of seventy six pecent appeared ambitious.’  
 
That the last paragraph reads; 
‘The Committee Chairman suggested that those living within Super Output Areas and 
those with a family history were the most at risk and it was therefore important that 
family history be factored in with the CCG Director of 10 Care commissioning 10 Care to 
review those with strong family history of inherited heart disease with the QRisk 2 
template, helping to mitigate the risk of Judicial Review.’ 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
be available on request. 

Page 30



 

- 25 - 
 

Documents referred to in these minutes as Schedules are not appended, but will be attached to the 
signed copy of the Minutes of the meeting.  Copies, or specific information contained in them, may be 
available on request. 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel  

Work Programme 2017/18 
 

Date Items for Agenda 

14 June 2017 Leek Moorlands Hospital - Representatives from the CCG 

 

  

18  October 2017 
Meeting cancelled due 
to representatives 
being unable to attend 

West Midlands Ambulance Service - Mark Docherty, Director of Clinical Commissioning & Service 
Development/Executive Nurse. 

Health Visiting Services – Tilly Flanagan, Head of Child Health & Well-Being 

  

28 Feb 2018 
Meeting cancelled due 
to the weather 

Care Homes & Nursing Homes – Andrew Jepps/Helen Trousdale SCC       

Staffordshire & Stoke on Trent Partnership NHS Trust – Annual Update 

  

9th May 2018 North Staffordshire Combined Health Care NHS Trust 

  

  

TBC Update on the Withdrawal of  Funding For Hearing Aids 

 Care Homes & Nursing Homes – Andrew Jepps/Helen Trousdale SCC       

 Staffordshire & Stoke on Trent Partnership NHS Trust – Annual Update 

  

 Cancer End of Life Pathways – SCC leading the scrutiny process 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan – SCC leading the scrutiny process 

 

Key Organisations to Invite/ Schedule Annually 
 

Royal Stoke University Hospital 

North Staffordshire CCG 

Staffordshire & Stoke on Trent Partnership NHS Trust 

North Staffordshire Combined Health Care NHS Trust 

Healthwatch Staffordshire  

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 9



 

P
age 34


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	4 Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee.
	9 Work Programme.

